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T H E   D E P A R T M E N T   O F

T H E   P R I M E   M I N I S T E R   A N D   C A B I N E T


TELEPHONE:
(02) 6271 5111
3-5  NATIONAL CIRCUIT


FACSIMILE:
(02) 6271 5414
CANBERRA,  A.C.T.  2600


The Secretary

Finance and Public Administration 

    References Committee

Parliament House

CANBERRA   ACT   2600

Dear Ms Donaldson

SUBMISSION TO THE SENATE FOR FINANCE AND PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION REFERENCES COMMITTEE – COMMERCIAL-IN-CONFIDENCE MATERIAL

The Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (“the department”) supports accountability in relation to government contracts.  The department has in the past provided and will continue to provide information relating to its contractual arrangements and supports in principle that contractual arrangements should be transparent and open to public scrutiny where possible.

At recent public hearings, for example, the department has made available information relating to a key departmental contract.  This information related to the measurement of performance in the department’s contract with CanDeliver, our private provider of payroll, accounts processing and occupational health and safety services.

In accordance with the requirements for departmental Annual Reports, this department provides information relating to contracts in its report.

The department does not believe that claims of commercial-in-confidence should be used as a generalised basis to refuse disclosure of information to the Parliament.  However, there is inevitably a tension between the interests of accountability and the proper protection of commercial interests in some cases.  The appropriate balance needs to be addressed both at the time when contracts are written (and any confidentiality clauses included) and when any request for information is received from the Parliament.

The balance is more likely to come down against disclosure where the information requested relates to details of commercial strategies or fee structures, which are likely to have sufficient commercial sensitivity to outweigh their value for accountability purposes.  On the other hand, information such as a description of the total amount payable, an account of the performance measures to be applied and factual information about outcomes is likely to have a high value in accountability terms and somewhat less commercial sensitivity.  For that information, the balance is more likely to come down in favour of disclosure.  The balance will however need to be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

The department is of the view that where a commercial-in-confidence claim is to be made, it should be supported by reference to the particular detriment which would flow from release of the information.

In many cases, this will be expressed in terms of a detriment to the commercial interests of a party entering a contract with the Commonwealth.  In bidding for a contract, the company is likely to set out detailed commercial proposals for meeting its obligations as well as information promoting its services and describing the fee structure for the contract.  In many cases, the contractor’s proposal is incorporated as part of the final contract documentation.  In this context, disclosure of full details of the contract could involve disclosure of commercial strategies, intellectual property and other information which would be of significant commercial value.  Its release could disadvantage the contractor and advantage its competitors in future tender processes.

In some cases, a contractor might offer the Commonwealth particularly favourable terms because of the profile of the task.  The contractor may well be concerned that release of those terms would prejudice their capacity to negotiate better terms with other customers.  Disclosure of information in such circumstances may not only prejudice the contractor’s interests, but also the Commonwealth’s interests if, as a result, those favourable terms are not offered in the future.

In other situations, the disclosure of terms offered to one contractor by the Commonwealth may prompt other contractors to press for equivalent terms, in effect setting a floor for the market and prejudicing the Commonwealth’s ability to negotiate best terms in future cases.  

Where such a detriment can be established, either to the contractor’s interest or the Commonwealth’s interest, some care needs to be taken about any disclosure of information.  Any decision to withhold information would be based on the specific consequences in the circumstances, rather than on the application of some general principle that commercial information is inherently confidential.

In cases where there is justification for certain information not being made public, there is likely to be scope for other details and for information of a general nature to be made available.  For example, while the release of details regarding a fee structure might be damaging in a particular case, information about the global fee payable may not be.

In this context, it is not a black and white issue as to whether the terms of a contract will or will not be available.  In many cases, some details may need to be withheld but a substantial account of the contract will still be available for accountability purposes.

A recent Parliamentary Question (Senate Question 2119) requested information on whether departmental contracts have contained commercial-in-confidence clauses.  We found that, since 1 July 1999, only one departmental (PM&C) contract contained a specific clause restricting disclosure of contract details.  In all others there was no specific clause, but we would still hold reservations regarding release of any sensitive commercial information in those contracts.  

We acknowledge Senator Murray’s objective of improving accountability to the Parliament by having additional information regarding contractual arrangements placed onto the departmental Home Page on the Internet.  There would however be a significant additional work effort associated with this task and we are concerned that it may not prove to be of real value.

You would be aware that a very similar task was imposed under an Order of the Senate initiated by Senator Harradine.  The preparation and publication of the indexed list of files has proved to be a time consuming and resource intensive exercise for the department.  Each six months, approximately 2000 departmental files are reviewed to determine their status for inclusion in the next indexed list of file tiles.  Overall, 40 working days are expended each year by the departmental officers to prepare and publish this list.

We have not seen any indication that the PM&C lists are used to any significant extent.  For example, there is no indication that they are used to target requests under the Freedom of Information Act.  Nor has the process of assembling the list proved to be of any internal value to the department in management terms.

The discussion in the report of the Committee’s 1997 review of the Order indicates that the evidence available even then raised questions about the practical value of the Order, notwithstanding its objectives. 

We are concerned that an approach along the lines of Senator Murray’s motion will not in practice provide information of real value for accountability purposes or improve practice by agencies.  As indicated above, the information about whether a confidentiality provision is included would not necessarily give an indication of the sensitivities.  Much of the other information sought is already made available in any event.

We are also concerned that the workload to be placed on the Auditor-General would be onerous, but no doubt the Auditor-General would be better placed to inform the committee on that issue.

As an alternative, we believe the publication of some guiding principles about how claims for commercially sensitive information might be approached is more likely to be productive over time.

In our own areas of responsibility, the department is considering the inclusion of a short section dealing with these issues in proposed guidelines for public servants about contact with the Parliament.  These guidelines will replace the current Government Guidelines for Official Witnesses Before Parliamentary Committees but are expected to cover a wider range of circumstances in which parliamentarians seek information from public servants.

Yours sincerely

Alan Henderson

Executive Coordinator 

Government and Corporate 

18 May 2000
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